
BEFORE THE UNITED STATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION III
1650 Arch Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

In The Matter of

HENRY J. KAUFMAN, JR.

Respondent

Regarding property known as the
Kaufman Chicken Ranch located at
2714 Wild Turkey Road,
Seaford, Delaware 19973-5003

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Class I Proceeding Under Section
309 (g)(2)(A) of the Clean Water
Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(A)

Docket No. CWA-03-2009-0001

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

I. STATUTORY AUTHORITY

This Consent Agreement and Final Order is entered into by the Director of the
Water Protection Division, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region III
("Complainant") and Henry J. Kaufinan, Jr., ("Respondent" or "Kaufinan"), pursuant to Section
309(g) of the Clean Water Act (hereinafter "CWA" or "the Act"), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and the
Consolidated Rules ofPractice Governing the Administrative Assessment o/Civil Penalties,
Issuance ofCompliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Termination or
Suspension ofPermits ("Consolidated Rules'~, 40 C.F.R. Part 22.

The parties, having agreed to the commencement and conclusion of this cause ofaction
by issuance of this Consent Agreement and Final Order pursuant to Section 22. 13(b) of the
Consolidated Rules, and having consented to the entry of this Consent Agreement and Final
Order, agree to comply with its ternts.

1. Section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of pollutants
except in compliance with. inter alia, Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342.

2. Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, provides for the issuance of National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (''NPDES'') permits which allow the discharge of
pollutants under specified conditions.

3. Section 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12), defines the term "discharge of
pollutant" to include "any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters from any point source."
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4. "Pollutant" is defined by Section 502(6) ofthe CWA~ 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6) to include
"dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions,
chemical wastes, biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded
equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt and industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged
into water."

I
7. "Concentrated animal feeding operation" or "CAFO" is defined by 40 C.F.R. §

122.23(b)(2) as an animal feeding operation that meets the definition of a Large CAFO or
Medium CAFO in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 122.23(b), or that is designated as a CAFO in
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 122.23(c). .

5. "Point Source" is defined by Section 502(14) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14) to
include "any discernible, confined and discrete conveyance, including but not limited to any
pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, well, discrete fissure, container, rolling stock, concentrated animal
feeding operation...from which pollutants are or may be discharged."

I
6. "Animal feeding operation" or "AFO" is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 122.23(b)(I) as a lot

or facility where animals have been, are, or will be stabled or confined and fed or maintained for
a total of 45 days or more in any twelve-month period, and where crops, vegetation, forage
growth, or post-harvest residues are not sustained in the normal growing season over any portion
of the lot or facility.

8. "Large CAFO" defined at 40 C.F.R. § l22.23(b)(4)(ix) includes an animal feeding
operation that stables or confines as many as or more than 30,000 laying hens or broilers, if the
AFO uses a liquid manure handling system (40 C.F.R. §122.23(b)(4)(ix».

9. "Waters of the United States" are defined by 40 C.F.R. § 122.2 to include interstate
waters and tributaries thereto. i

I
10. "Production area" is defined by 40 C.F.R. § I22.23(b)(8) to mean that part of an

AFO that includes the animal confinement area, the manure storage area, the raw materials
storage area, and the waste containment areas. !

II. "Process wastewater" is defined in 40 C.F.R. § I22.23(b)(7) as water "directly or
indirectly used in the operation of the AFO for any of the following: spil1age or overflow from
animal or poultry watering systems; washing, cleaning, or flushing pens, barns, manure pits, or
other AFO facilities ...Process wastewater also includes any water which comes into contact with
any raw materials, products, or byproducts including manure" litter, feed, milk, eggs or bedding."

I

12. The Delaware Department ofNatural Resources and Environmental Control
("DNREC") is the agency within the State ofDelaware which is authorized to administer the
Federal NPDES Program. The EPA maintains concurrent enforcement authority with authorized
state NPDES programs to address violations of the CWA. :
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II. EPA'S FINDINGS OF FACT

EPA makes the following findings offacts:

i
14. On April 5, 2007, EPA and its representatives conducted an inspection of the

Kaufman Chicken Ranch, which included the taking of samples.i i

15. At the time of the EPA inspection, Respondent did Aot have an NPDES Pe~it.
. I r

16, Respondent is certified as a nutrient generator, by Delaware's Nutrient Management
Program, whose Delaware Department of Agriculture ("DDA")I Certification Number iSi 0176.

17. According to the Delaware Nutrient Management Certification Regulations 'to
qualify for a Certified Nutrient Generator ''the applicant must take and successfully complete at
least 6 credits of educational coursework as approved by the Commission or Program i

Administrator. Proof of such completion of course work shall be submitted with the application."
i i

18. On April 16, 2007, Respondent signed a Notice of Intent ("NOI") and Application
for Coverage, which he submitted to DDA. I I

I
19. On April 16, 2007, DDA issued a letter to Respondent identifying areas where

Respondent should improve his nutrient management practices. I

i I
I I

20. Respondent raises roaster chickens at the Kaufman Chicken Ranch, currently under
contract with Allen's Hatchery, Inc. I I

I i
21. Allen Family Foods, Inc., is a closely-held corporation, which operates as part ofa

vertically-integrated poultry operation, along with Allen's Hatchery, Inc., and Allen's Milling
Company, referred to collectively herein as "Allen's." I

22. Respondent raises in excess of 80,000 chickens per year, storing them in the four
enclosed poultry houses located on the Facility, for a total of 45 days or more in any tWelve-

month period. I I
23. The Kaufman Chicken Ranch contains four poultry houses, manure shed :-'lith a

storage capacity of approximately 500 tons, and mortality composting shed. i
I I

24. An Allen's flock supervisor routinely visits Kaufinan Chicken Ranch. According to
the Allen Family Foods, Inc. website, Allen "flock supervisors monitor the chicks at every stage
of their growth." Additionally, the Allen Family Foods, Inc.; website states that "We consult
with growers frequently on bird health and well being, as well as bird waste management."

3 I I
r
I

13. The Respondent owns and operates an animal feeding operation, known as the
"Kaufman Chicken Ranch" also referred to herein as the "Facility" located at 2714 Wild Turkey
Road, Seaford, Sussex County, Delaware. The Kaufman Chicken Ranch is identified in Sussex
County land records as Parcel ill 53100800000900, PIN 531-8.qO-9.00. I
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25. Allen's, which owns the chickens, delivers newborn chicks to the Kaufman Chicken
Ranch, provides feed for its chickens, monitors their growth and /n0rtality, collects the chickens
when they have grown to desired size, and transports them from the Kaufman Chicken Ranch to
an Allen's owned facility for processing. I . i

, ,

26. Following the removal of the chickens by Allen's, Rrspondent prepares the c,hicken
houses for the next flock of chicks, to be provided by Allen's approximately three weeks ,later.
During this time period between flocks, Respondent performs ei!her a partial clean out of the
chicken houses, called a "crust out", or a full house clean out, called a "full clean out." I

I !

27. Respondent conducted a full clean out of all poultry,houses on February 5, ~007,
after which Allen's provided Respondent with bedding material for Respondent's four chicken

houses. I
28. Respondent retains a contractor to perform full clean outs. During the full clean outs,

half the litter of each house is piled at the rear ofeach house and half at the front of each house.

29. According to Respondent, at the time of the Februal 5, 2007 full clean out! the
Manure Shed was full and therefore Respondent stored the man'ure piles outside until they could
be removed by a crop farmer for land application at a different farm. I

30. According to Respondent, a crop farmer came to tJe Kaufman Chicken R~ch on
April 3, 2007, to begin to gather apd remove all ofthe litter frohI the Kaufman Chicken Ranch,
but was unable to remove all of the litter due to rain that occuried on April 4, 2007. I

31. Respondent told EPA's inspectors that a thunder slorm on Apri14, 2007 dropped
approximately two inches ofrain on the Kaufman Chicken R~ch. Additionally, a we:ither
station in Georgetown, Delaware, approximately 15 miles frorri the Facility, reported 0.93 inches

, ,

ofrainfall on April 4, 2007; and a weather station in Laurel, Delaware, approximately 10 miles
from the Facility, reported 0.75 inches ofrainfall on same day] I

32. On February 16,2007, EPA representatives droV)bY the Respondent's Facility and
observed a long, uncovered pile in the facility's Production Mea on the northern side 6fHouse 3,
later confirmed by EPA to be chicken litter. I

33. On March 16,2007, EPA representatives drove by the Respondent's Facility and
again observed a long, uncovered pile located in the Facility's Production Area on the'northern
side of House 3. i i

34. On April 3, 2007, EPA inspectors drove by the Kaufman Chicken Ranch and
observed for the third time the presence of the long, uncover~d pile located in the Facility's
Production Area on the northern side ofHouse3.! I

35. During the EPA inspection of AprilS, 2007, EPA inspectors and representatives
observed remnants of the long, uncovered pile located on the' northern side of House 3, referred

I
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I
to above and detennined that it was litter. Based upon EPA's oJervations, the manure Jle
located on the northern side ofHouse 3 was uncovered and expoked to weather condition~ for at

1~49~. I I
36. A drainage swale is located between House 2 and Hbuse 3, near the manure khed.

The drainage swale conveys water and wastes that pass through hpipe and drains in a w~sterly
direction towards the unnamed tributary of the Horse Pen BranT' I

37. EPA inspectors and representatives also observed evidence, including a circular
pattern and dark material inconsistent with the adjacent soil, indicating a manure pile had been
located at the western end of House 4, as identified on the aerial' photograph attached heteto as
Exhibit A. EPA took samples in and around the location ofard where the fonner litter pile had
been located at the western end of House 4, confinning the pres~ce ofnitrogen and phosphorus.

38. The ground behind the western side of House 4 slotes downwards towards L
unnamed tributary of the Horse Pen Branch. The unnamed trib~taryofthe Horse Pen B~anch is
located along the western portion of the Kaufman Chicken Ran~h property. The unnam'ed

, ,

tributary of the Horse Pen Branch flows to the Horse Pen Branch. The Horse Pen Branch flows
into the Butler Mill Creek and the Butler Mill Creek in tum flo~s into the Nanticoke Ri~er.

39. On AprilS, 2007, EPA's inspectors and representJives observed drainagebattems
in the soil and sediment behind the western end of House 4 leading toward the unnamed tributary
of the Horse Pen Branch. I

40. At the time of the inspection the Facility did not have any structures to pretent the
discharge of contaminated stonnwater which is considered to be process wastewater fr6m the

Facility. I I
III. EPA'S CONCLUSIONS dFLAW

41. Respondent is an individual and therefore a "persdn' within the meaning of Section
502(5) ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5).

42. Respondent owns and operates the Facility.

43. The Facility stables or confines in an enclosed bal.
for a total of45 days or more in any twelve-month period.

in excess 000,000 chickens

44. The Facility is an AFO as defined by 40 C.F.R. § 122.23(b)(I).

45. Respondent stored manure outside in uncovered Jiles for at least 45 days.1 Therefore,
Respondent's facility utilizes a liquid manure handling system.

I
46. The Respondent's Facility confines at least 30,OqO chickens and uses a liquid

manure handling system. Therefore the Facility is a Large CAFO, as that tenn is defined in
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40 C.F.R. § 122.23(b)(4).

•

I
47. Respondent's Facility is a "point source" as defined by CWA Section 502(14),

33 U.S.C. § 1362(14). I I
48. Respondent did not at the time of the inspection havl an NPDES Pennit for the

~i~ I
49. The unnamed tributary to the Horse Pen Branch is a ,water of the United Stat~s, as

defined by 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. Alternatively, the unnamed tributkY to the Horse Pen Brarich is a
point source conveyance leading to a water of the United States.I I

50. On infonnation and belief, based on the evidence o~ the outdoor storage of chicken
litter on the ground behind the western end ofHouse 4, its proximity to the unnamed tri~utary to
the Horse Pen Branch, the slope and condition of the land betw~en the site of the fonneri litter
pile and the unnamed tributary to the Horse Pen Branch, as well as the visually observeq
drainage patterns in the soil and sediment, pollutants from the Ii~ter pile that had been lopated on
the ground behind the western end of House 4 discharged into the unnamed tributary to the
Horse Pen Branch on April 4, 2007.

51. Process wastewater and/or manure containing polltitants flowed from the manure
pile located on the ground behind the western end of House 4 ahd ultimately discharged into the
unnamed tributary to the Horse Pen Branch without an NPDESI pennit. This flow constituted an
unauthorized discharge ofpollutants from a point source to waters of the United States IViolating
Section 301 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, and implementing regulations.

I
IV. GENERAL PROVISIONS

52. For the purpose of this proceeding:

a. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set forth in this Consent
Agreement and Final Order; I I

b. Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations set forth
in this Consent Agreement and Final Order;! I

c. Respondent consents to the assessment of tJe civil penalty set forth herein;

d. Respondent agrees to undertake all actions ~equired by this consenJ
Agreement and Final Order;

e. Respondent hereby expressly waives his right to contest the allegations set
forth in this Consent Agreement and Final ,order at a hearing under Section
309(g)(2)(A) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g)(2)(A); and

f. Respondent waives his right to appeal this Final Order under
6



I
Section 309(g)(8)(A) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §I 13 I9(g)(8)(A).

53. This Consent Agreement and Final Order shalI not rllieve Respondent of his
obligations to comply with alI applicable provisions of federal, state or Iocallaw, nor shall it be
interpreted to be a permit or modification of any existing permit ,issued pursuant to Sections 402
and 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1342 and 1344, or any other law. Moreover, Respondent
agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of the CWA.

54. This Consent Agreement and the accompanying Final Order, resolves the civil
claims against the Respondent for the specific violations alleged herein. EPA reserves the right
to commence an action against any person, including Responderit, in response to any condition
which EPA determines may present an imminent and substantial endangerment to the public
health, public welfare, or the environment. In addition, this settl~ment is subject to alI limitations
on the scope ofresolution and to the reservation of rights set forth in Section 22.18(c) of the
Consolidated Rules of Practice. Further, EPA reserves any rights and remedies available to it
under the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq., the regulations promulgated thereunder,
and any other federal laws or regulations for which EPA has jUl4sdiction, to enforce the
provisions of this Consent Agreement and Final Order, followiJg its effective date.

I
55. This Consent Agreement and Final Order is conditioned upon the accuracy ofthe

Respondent's representations to EPA. EPA reserves the right tJ institute a new and/or separate
action should Respondent fail to comply with the terms of this Consent Agreement and Final
Order. That right shall be in addition to all other rights and caJses of action, civil or criminal,
the EPA may have under law or equity in such event.

56. All ofthe terms and conditions of this Consent Agreement and Final Order together
comprise one agreement, and each of the terms and conditionsjis in consideration of all of the
other terms and conditions. In the event that this Consent Agreement and Final Order or one or
more of its terms and conditions is held invalid, or is not exec~ted by all of the signatories in
identical form, or is not approved in such identical form by the Regional Administrator or his
designee, then the entire Consent Agreement and Final Order Shall be null and void.

V. PENALTY

57. For the purpose of this proceeding, the Respondehcs consent to the assessment of a
civil penalty (the "Civil Penalty") in full and complete settlen1ent of EPA's civil claims as set
forth in the Complaint alleging the violation of Section 301 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §
1311, in the amount of one thousand five hundred dollars ($1 )500).

I
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VI. PAYMENT TERMS

58. Respondent shall pay the Civil Penalty within thirty:(30) days ofthe effective date of
this Consent Agreement and Final Order pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(c), by cashier's o}
certified check, payable to the "Treasurer, United States of Amehca." Payment shall be \nailed
to the following address:

U.S. EPA
P.O. Box 360515
Pittsburgh, PA 15251-6515

59.
this case.

I
Respondent shall note on the penalty payment check the title and docket number of

60. Respondent shall submit notice ofpayment, along tith a copy ofthe check to:

Regional Hearing Clerk (3ROO)
US EPA Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103

with copies sent to:

Andrew Duchovnay (3RC20)
Sr. Asst. Regional Counsel
US EPA Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103

61. The following notice concerns interest and late pehalty charges that will accrue in
the event that any portion of the civil penalty is not paid as dirrcted: I

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.II, EPA is entitled to assess
interest and late payment penalties on outstanding debts owed to the United States
and a charge to cover the costs ofprocessing and handling a delinquent c1~im, as
more fully described below. Accordingly, Respohdent's failure to make timely
payment or to comply with the conditions in this Consent Agreement and !Final
Order shall result in the assessment oflate paymeht charges including intJrest,
penalties, and/or administrative costs ofhandlingidelinqUent debts. I

Interest on the civil penalty assessed in this Consent Agreement and Final Order will
begin to accrue on the date that a copy of this Cohsent Agreement and Fit~al Order is
mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent. HoweVer, EPA will not seek tolrecover
interest on any amount of the civil penalty that isl paid within thirty (30) calendar
days after the date on which such interest begins :to accrue. Interest will b:e assessed
at the rate of the United States Treasury tax and loan rate in accordance vrith 40
C.F.R. § 13.11 (a).
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The costs of the Agency's administrative handling of ,overdue debts will be cHarged
and assessed monthly throughout the periO? the debt ,is overdue. !
40 C.F.R. § 13.1 I(b). Pursuant to AppendIX 2 of EPA's Resources Management
Directives - Cash Management, Chapter 9, EPA williassess a $15.00 administrative
handling charge for administrative costs on unpaid p\,nalties for the first thirty (30)
day period after the payment is due and an additional $15.00 for each such
subsequent thirty (30) days the penalty remains unp~id.

A penalty charge, not to exceed six percent, will be lssessed monthly on any portion
of the civil penalty which remains delinquent more trlan ninety (90) calenda~days.
40 C.F.R. § 13.II(c). Should assessment of the penalty charge on the debt be
required, it shall accrue from the first day payment ik delinquent.
31 C.F.R. § 90J.9(d).

VII. EFFECTIVE DATE

62. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.45, this Consent Agreelent and Final Order shall be
, ,

issued after a 40-day public notice period has concluded. This Consent Agreement and Final
, ,

Order will become final thirty (30) days after issuance, 33 U.S.C. § 13 I9(g)(4), and will become
effective on that same date, 40 C.F.R.§ 22.3 I(b).

FOR RESPONDENT:

~~/i%"L~k·
Henryrau~an,Jr., OWner v
Kaufman Chicken Ranch

SO ORDERED BY:

Jo M. Capacasa, Dir ctor
Water Protection Division
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In The Matter of

HENRY J. KAUFMAN, JR.
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Regarding property known as the
Kaufman Chicken Ranch located at
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)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
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)
)

Docket No. CWA·03·2009·0001

CERTIFICATE OF SERVI€E

I hereby certify that on this date I caused to be sent Je original of the attached Consent
Agreement and Final Order, delivered by hand to the:

Regional Hearing Clerk, Region, III,
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
1650 Arch Street I
Philadelphia, PA 19103

and with copies to the following at the addresses listed below, via regular, First Class mail:

Mr. Henry J. Kaufman, Jr.
2714 Wild Turkey Road
Seaford, DE 19973·5003

Date:~os....,......".,-----
Andrew Duch0'jDay
Sr. Assistant Regional COll
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